## MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE ABINGDON AREA COMMITTEE

HELD AT THE GUILDHALL, ABINGDON ON THURSDAY, 6TH NOVEMBER, 2008 AT 7.00PM

## Open to the Public, including the Press

#### PRESENT:

MEMBERS: Councillor Angela Lawrence (Chair), Beth Fleming (Vice-Chair), Mary de Vere, Tony de Vere, Gervase Duffield, Jim Halliday, Pat Lonergan, Julie Mayhew-Archer, Alison Rooke, Tim Smith and Richard Webber

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: Lorna Edwards, Toby Warren and Carole Nicholl

NUMBER OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: 9

## Ab.27 ELECTION OF CHAIR

It was proposed by Councillor Pat Lonergan, seconded by Councillor Tony de Vere and

RESOLVED

that Councillor Angela Lawrence be elected Chair of the Abingdon Area Committee for the remainder of the 2008-2009 Municipal Year.

#### Councillor Angela Lawrence – In the Chair

#### Ab.28 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR

It was proposed by Councillor Alison Rooke, seconded by Councillor Richard Webber and

RESOLVED

that Councillor Beth Fleming be elected Vice-Chair of the Abingdon Area Committee for the remainder of the 2008-2009 Municipal Year.

### Ab.29 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were recorded from Councillors Sam Bowring, Paul Burton, Richard Gibson, Janet Morgan and Laurel Symons.

#### Ab.30 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Abingdon Area Committee held on 25 March 2008 were adopted and signed as a correct record.

### Ab.31 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Members declared interests in report 112/08 - Community Grants (minute Ab.33 refers) as follows: -

Councillor	Type of Interest	<u>Item</u>	Reason
Richard Webber	Personal	DAMASCUS	He represented Drayton and worked quite closely with the project.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal	DAMASCUS	She had raised money for the project in her former capacity as Chairman of the Council and as such a number of people associated with DAMASCUS were known to her.
Alison Rooke	Personal	APAGE	In so far as she was a member of the Operatic Society.
Tony de Vere	Personal	APAGE	In so far a number of the organisers were known to him.
Jim Halliday	Personal	APAGE	In so far as a number of the organisers and deliverers were known to him.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal	APAGE	In so far as a number of people involved with APAGE were known to her.
Tony de Vere	Personal	Abbey Brass	In so far as a number of people involved with were known to him.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal	Abbey Brass	In so far as a number of people involved with Abbey Brass were known to her.
Jim Halliday	Personal	Abbey Brass	In so far as he knew the Band Leader and some Members.
Alison Rooke	Personal	Compass Café	In so far as some of the helpers were known to her.
Mary de Vere	Personal & Prejudicial	Compass Café	In so far as she was a member of All Saints Church which gave funding to the Café project.

Tony de Vere	Personal & Prejudicial	Compass Café	In so far as he was a member of All Saints Church which gave funding to the Café project.
Beth Fleming	Personal & Prejudicial	Compass Café	In so far as her husband was on the Peachcroft Management Committee, the centre where the Café was sited.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal	Abingdon and District Musical Society	In so far as a number of people associated with the Society were known to her.
Alison Rooke	Personal	Abingdon Band	In so far as the Band Master was known to her as an employee of the Town Council and she was a Member of the Town Council.
Angela Lawrence	Personal	Abingdon Band	In so far as the Band Master was known to her as an employee of the Town Council and she was a Member of the Town Council.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal	Abingdon Band	In so far as the Band Master was known to her as an employee of the Town Council and she was a Member of the Town Council.
Jim Halliday	Personal	Abingdon Band	In so far as the Band Master was known to him as an employee of the Town Council and he was a Member of the Town Council.
Pat Lonergan	Personal	Abingdon Band	In so far as the Band Master was known to him as an employee of the Town Council and he was a Member of the Town Council.
Pat Lonergan	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council – Mini Guide	In so far as he was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Angela Lawrence	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council – Mini Guide	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor.

Alison Rooke	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council – Mini Guide	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council – Mini Guide	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Jim Halliday	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council – Mini Guide	In so far as he was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Pat Lonergan	Personal & Prejudicial	The Vale of White Horse Foyer	In so far as the Foyer was one of his supported charities in his capacity as Mayor of Abingdon Town Council.
Angela Lawrence	Personal & Prejudicial	The Vale of White Horse Foyer	In so far as she was the Town Council's representative on the Management Board of the Foyer.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal	The Vale of White Horse Foyer	In so far as she was the District Council's representative on the Advisory Committee of the Foyer.
Gervase Duffield	Personal	Appleford Parish Council and Village Hall Committee	In so far as he was an Appleford Parish Councillor. However, he was not involved in the Village Hall Committee.
Jim Halliday	Personal	Age Concern	In so far as his Ward was one of the areas which benefited from this group and he knew a number of people affected.
Pat Lonergan	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon on Thames Chamber of Commerce	In so far as he was an Abingdon Town Councillor and the Town Council ran the Chamber.
Angela Lawrence	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon on Thames Chamber of Commerce	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor and the Town Council ran the Chamber.
Alison Rooke	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon on Thames Chamber of Commerce	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor and the Town Council ran the Chamber.

Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon on Thames Chamber of Commerce	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor and the Town Council ran the Chamber.
Jim Halliday	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon on Thames Chamber of Commerce	In so far as he was an Abingdon Town Councillor and the Town Council ran the Chamber.
Pat Lonergan	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council - Service Level Agreement	In so far as he was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Angela Lawrence	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council - Service Level Agreement	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Alison Rooke	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council - Service Level Agreement	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Julie Mayhew Archer	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council - Service Level Agreement	In so far as she was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Jim Halliday	Personal & Prejudicial	Abingdon Town Council - Service Level Agreement	In so far as he was an Abingdon Town Councillor.
Richard Webber	Personal & Prejudicial	Drayton Twinning Society - Service Level Agreement	In so far as he was a Drayton Parish Councillor.

### Ab.32 URGENT BUSINESS AND CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

None.

## Ab.33 STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER $\underline{32}$

Notice had been given of five statements from members of the public which were made as follows: -

1. Rita Atkinson on behalf of the DAMASCUS Project

Rita Atkinson, joined by 5 members of the project made a statement setting out examples of the work of the project such as building a sun dial at a Millennium Green, confidence building with young people and support given. The Committee was asked to support the grant application presented.

2. Reverend Peter Bennett on behalf of the Compass Cafe

Reverend Bennett asked the Committee to support the grant application made in respect of Compass Café explaining that the initiative benefited young people. He reported that funds were needed to finance a centre based youth worker. He explained that there were volunteers at the café and that it was a safe place for young people to go, where they were welcomed and supported by adults. He reported that the work of the café was well co-ordinated but that the employment of a youth worker would significantly benefit the young people. Finally he commented on the benefits of the project giving details of how young people can improve their confidence.

#### Malcolm Ross on behalf of APAGE

Mr Ross thanked the Committee for the grant awards in previous years and asked Members to be supportive again this year. He reported that the main aim of the festival was to introduce arts to as many people as possible in the Vale and that the leaflet produced would be circulated in Abingdon and the surrounding areas. He reported that funding was needed towards printing and distribution of leaflets. He commented that he believed that the brochure this year would be bigger and better encouraging more people to attend.

## 4. Mavis Gotch on behalf of Appleford Village Hall Committee

Mrs Gotch reported that she was the administrator of the hall. She reported that the Parish Council had extended and refurbished the village hall but funding was required towards curtains, furniture and some smaller items. She commented that the hall was used regularly by many organisations.

## 5. Roger Wilkinson on behalf of Abingdon Concert Band

Mr Wilkinson commented on the membership of the band explaining that new players were sought and that events had been held in some 150 venues. He reported that there was usually a good attendance at events. He commented that the Band was reliant on donations and grants and that the funding sought now was towards new contemporary music which would hopefully improve the appeal of the band.

The Chair thanked everyone for their statements.

## Ab.34 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 32

None.

#### Ab.35 COMMUNITY GRANTS

The Committee received and considered report 112/08 – Community Grants and detailed comments were made as set out below. In considering the application, Members took into account the statements made by members of the public earlier in the meeting. Those applications were considered first.

One Member commented that in view of the limited finances available consideration of the applications referred to the Committee by the Executive for additional funding should be deferred and this was supported by the Committee. It was also suggested that only 50% of the Committee's budget should be awarded at this meeting with each grant application being reduced proportionately so that 50% of the budget would be available for the last meeting of the financial year, in March 2009. However this was not supported it being considered that each application should be considered on its merits and a grant awarded accordingly.

## Abingdon Town Council - Service Level Agreement

Councillors Pat Lonergan, Angela Lawrence, Alison Rooke, Julie Mayhew Archer and Jim Halliday had each declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this application and they left the meeting during its consideration.

Councillor Beth Fleming the Vice-Chair took the Chair for this item.

Members supported the grant subject to the appropriate monitoring information being received. It was suggested that a report back on this to Members of the Committee would be useful.

#### <u>Drayton Twinning Society – Service Level Agreement</u>

Councillors Richard Webber had declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this application and he left the meeting during its consideration.

Members supported the grant subject to the appropriate monitoring information being received.

#### (i) <u>DAMASCUS Youth Project</u>

Councillors Richard Webber and Julie Mayhew Archer had each declared a personal interest in this application.

One Member referred to the "Chill Out" fund held by the County Council suggesting that this was a project which might receive grant assistance from that fund. It was commented that the County Council had primary responsibility for youth activities and that funding should be sought from the "Chill Out" fund.

It was commented that the funding was required now for the project and that it would not be possible to defer consideration of the application to the next meeting in March which would be too late. One Member suggested that there should be evidence of local support for the project and that a provisional grant should be awarded payable if a grant application to the County Council was unsuccessful.

However, other Members considered that an initial grant should be offered with a further amount should a grant request to the County Council be unsuccessful.

On consideration of this application, Members commented that feedback on the "Chill Out" fund would be of interest and use to Members and should be

reported in the Members' Information and Action Sheet. It was commented that it was hoped that the County Council would show a commitment to youth activities by supporting this and other projects in this area.

One Member commented that DAMASCUS should approach the County Council for funding in the first instance and this Council thereafter in the future.

## (ii) APAGE

Councillors Alison Rooke, Tony de Vere, Jim Halliday and Julie Mayhew Archer had each declared a personal interest in this application.

Some Members expressed support regarding the costs involved considering that the printing costs could be reduced by planning ahead over the next few years. However, the application was supported it being noted that promoting the Arts festival had an economic effect on Abingdon and the surrounding area drawing visitors in thus assisting in the vitality.

One Member commented that the event was becoming more and more successful and should be encouraged. It was agreed that APAGE should be supported.

## (iii) Abbey Brass

Councillors Tony de Vere, Julie Mayhew Archer and Jim Halliday had each declared a personal interest in this application.

Members supported the application. It was commented that the level of grant should be similar to the level given to other bands. However, other Members considered that the level should be different it being noted that that grant was sought towards musical instruments rather than music, which would be used by young people.

#### (iv) Compass Café

Councillor Alison Rooke had declared a personal interest in this application.

Councillors Mary de Vere, Tony de Vere and Beth Fleming had each declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this application and they left the meeting during its consideration.

It was reported that funding in the sum of £3,000 had been awarded from All Saints Church. Figures for the balance and expenditure for the year for the Peachcroft Christian Centre were reported as £4,886 and £57,882 respectively. It was commented that it was not possible to identify specific information for the Compass Café as the accounts submitted had not been separated out.

Members supported the application but considered that funding should first be sought from the County Council's "Chill Out" fund which is was believed would

fund such projects. It was suggested that if such grant funding was not received from the County Council then this Council should agree a grant.

## (v) Abingdon and District Musical Society

Councillor Julie Mayhew Archer had declared a personal interest in this application.

One Member expressed concern that this application was to support a shortfall in revenue income from concerts and that approval would set a precedent for other similar applications.

In response to a question raised the Officers reported that last year most of the £800 funding offered to cover shortfall had been taken up.

Some Members supported the application commenting that had the applicant sought funding for some item of expenditure such as music rather than towards a loss of income, the application might sound more appealing. However, it was noted that it was not unusal to underwrite a loss for events.

One Member spoke against the application commenting that there was no evidence of fund raising.

## (vi) Abingdon Band

Councillors Alison Rooke, Angela Lawrence, Julie Mayhew Archer, Jim Halliday and Pat Lonergan had each declared a personal interest in this application.

Members supported the application.

#### (vii) Abingdon Concert Band

Members supported the application.

#### (viii) Abingdon Town Council – Mini Guide

Councillors Pat Lonergan, Angela Lawrence, Alison Rooke, Julie Mayhew Archer and Jim Halliday had each declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this application and they left the meeting during its consideration.

Councillor Beth Fleming the Vice-Chair took the Chair for this item.

One Member noted the limited grant award from the Town Council towards this project but it was reported that the Town Council was currently contributing to a major campaign to revitalise the town centre and as such funds were limited.

Another Member suggested that the scheme did not meet the Council's grant criteria and that no grant should be offered. Other Members agreed commenting that the Town Council could either increase its precept to fund

such projects in the future, or it could seek contributions from small businesses which would benefit from the publication.

## (ix) The Vale of White Horse Foyer

Councillor Julie Mayhew Archer had declared a personal interest in this application.

Councillors Pat Lonergan and Angela Lawrence had each declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this application and they left the meeting during its consideration.

Councillor Beth Fleming the Vice-Chair took the Chair for this item.

In response to a question raised the Officer confirmed that different people to those who had previously taken part would be going on any trip. It was considered that this was another application where funding might be available from the County Council's "Chill Out Fund". It was suggested that information on this fund should be sought from the County Council and circulated to all Members of the Council. The Officers advised that applicants were referred to the Council's Community Funding Advice Service where it was hoped that this and other funds were raised and discussed. It was highlighted that the applicant was exploring alternative funding options from the County Council but it was not hopeful that more funding would be forthcoming.

### (x) Appleford Parish Council and Village Hall Committee

Councillor Gervase Duffield had declared a personal interest in this application.

One Member commented that the parish precept was very low and the hire charges of the hall were also very low. It was suggested that the parish precept and the hall hire fees might be increased. However, it was noted that the Parish Council had funded major refurbishment works which had substantially reduced its reserves.

#### (xi) Age Concern

Councillor Jim Halliday had declared a personal interest in this application.

Members supported the application. It was considered that the remaining budget for the year should be awarded. This application was therefore considered after the other grant applications.

#### (xii) Abingdon on Thames Chamber of Commerce

Councillors Pat Lonergan, Angela Lawrence, Alison Rooke, Julie Mayhew Archer and Jim Halliday had each declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this application and they left the meeting during its consideration.

Councillor Beth Fleming the Vice-Chair took the Chair for this item.

Members supported the application but considered that none of any grant awarded should be spent on fireworks.

## (xiii) Owner, 26 Pagisters Road, Abingdon

Some Members spoke against the application considering that its approval could lead to other similar applications which would be hard to refuse. It was noted that the grant would benefit a private owner rather than a number of individuals.

Other Members supported the application suggesting that a grant would encourage tree maintenance which was to the benefit of the area and the enjoyment of many people.

#### RESOLVED

- (a) that the current budget position for the Abingdon Area Committee be noted;
- (b) that the payment of the Service Level Agreement (SLA) grants to Abingdon Town Council and the Drayton Twinning Society be approved, subject to the required monitoring information having been received; (Abingdon Town Council Grant proposed by Councillor Tony de Vere, seconded by Councilor Tim Smith and agreed by 6 votes to nil with 5 of the voting Members not being present during consideration of the application and Drayton Twinning Society Grant proposed by Councillor Tony de Vere, seconded by Councillor Julie Mayhew-Archer and agreed by 10 votes to nil with 1 of the voting Members not being present during consideration of the application);
- (c) that the grant applications received be dealt with as follows: -

<u>Applicant</u>	Purpose of Grant	Agenda <u>&amp;</u> Priority	<u>Amount</u>	
DAMASCUS Youth Project	Towards the cost of employing youth workers	Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	£4,000 with up to an additional £2,000 to be awarded should an application to the County Council be unsuccessful	Councillor Pat Lonergan proposed and Councillor Gervase Duffield seconded £4,000 which was agreed by 7 votes to nil with 4 abstentions.  It was then proposed by Councillor Pat Lonergan, seconded by Councillor Julie Mayhew Archer that up to a further £2,000 be awarded should an application to the County Council be unsuccessful and this was agreed by 8 votes to nil with 3 abstentions.
APAGE	Towards	Social	£3,000	Councillor Alison Rooke proposed and

	printing and distributing the Arts Festival brochure	Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority		the Chair seconded £2,250 but on being put to the vote this was lost by 8 votes to 3.  Councillor Tim Smith proposed and Councillor Pat Lonergan seconded £2,550 but on being put to the vote this was lost by 6 votes to 2 with 3 abstentions.  Councillor Julie Mayhew Archer proposed and Councillor Mary de Vere seconded £3,000 and on being put this was agreed by 7 votes to 1 with 3 abstentions.
Abbey Brass  Compass	Towards the purchase of learner instruments	Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	£300	Councillor Pat Lonergan proposed and Councillor Tim Smith seconded £150.  By way of an amendment Councillor Beth Fleming proposed and Councillor Mary de Vere seconded £500 but on being put the amendment was lost by 5 votes to 4 with 2 abstentions.  By way of a second amendment Councillor Jim Halliday proposed and Councillor Richard Webber seconded £250 but on being put the amendment was lost by 5 votes to 4 with 2 abstentions.  By way of a third amendment Councillor Angela Lawrence proposed and Councillor Julie Mayhew Archer seconded £300 and on being put the amendment was carried by 8 votes to 2 with 1 abstention. On being put the Substantive Motion was carried by 9 votes to nil with 2 abstentions.  Councillor Alison Rooke proposed and
Café	the cost of employing a Youth	Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	this time but that the applicant be requested to seek a grant from the County	the Chair seconded £1,500 with a further £1,500 to be awarded should a grant request to the County Council be unsuccessful.  By way of an amendment Councillor Pat Lonergan proposed that £5,000

			Council and if such application is unsuccessful a grant of up to £3,000 be offered.	By way of an amendment Councillor Jim Halliday proposed and Councillor Gervase Duffield seconded that no grant be offered at this time and that the applicant be requested to seek a grant from the County Council and if such application is unsuccessful a grant of up to £3,000 be offered. On being put the amendment was carried by 7 votes to 1.
Abingdon & District Musical Society	To cover any losses on a series of concerts	Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	£250	Councillor Pat Lonergan proposed £315 but this was not seconded.  Councillor Alison Rooke proposed and Councillor Julie Mayhew Archer seconded £500.  By way of an amendment, the Chair proposed £150 but this was not seconded.  By way of a further amendment Councillor Beth Fleming proposed and Councillor Gervase Duffield seconded that no grant be offered. On being put to the vote this amendment was lost by 5 votes to 4 with 2 abstentions.  By way of an amendment Councillor Richard Webber proposed that no grant be offered at this time but that consideration of the application be deferred to the next meeting. However, this was not seconded.  By way of a further amendment Councillor Jim Halliday proposed and Councillor Jam Halliday proposed and Councillor Pat Lonergan seconded £250. On being put this amendment was carried by 5 votes to 4 with 2 abstentions. On being put the Substantive Motion was carried by 8 votes to 1 with 2 abstentions.
Abingdon	Towards	Social	£750	Proposed by Councillor Pat Lonergan,

Band	the purchase of instruments, music stands and banners	Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority		seconded by Councillor Tim Smith and agreed by 11 votes to nil.
Abingdon Concert Band	Towards the purchase of new music and display boards	Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	£250	Proposed by Councillor Pat Lonergan, seconded by Jim Halliday and agreed by 6 votes to 3 with 2 abstentions.  Councillor Alison Rooke had proposed and Councillor Gervase Duffield had seconded an amendment of £150 but this was lost by 8 votes to 2 with 1 abstention.
Abingdon Town Council	Towards the cost of updating and reprinting the mini- guide of Abingdon	Economi c Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	Nil	Proposed by Councillor Mary de Vere, seconded by Councillor Gervase Duffield and agreed by 3 votes to 2 with 1 abstention with 5 of the voting Members not being present during consideration of the item.
The Vale of White Horse Foyer	Towards the cost of an outward bound personal developmen t course	Social Agenda, Access priority	£1,000 with up to an additional £670 to be awarded should an application to the County Council be unsuccessful	Councillor Tony de Vere proposed and Councillor Alison Rooke seconded £1,670. By way of an amendment Councillor Tim Smith proposed and Councillor Richard Webber seconded £1,000, with the balance of up to £670 to be awarded should an application to the County Council be unsuccessful. On being put the amendment was carried by 7 votes to 1 with 1 abstention with 2 of the voting Members not being present. On being put, the Substantive Motion was carried by 7 votes to 1 with 1 abstention with 2 of the voting Members not being present.
Appleford Parish Council and Village Hall Committee	Towards the purchase of furniture and curtains	Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	£1,000	Proposed by Councillor Gervase Duffield, seconded by Councillor Tim Smith and agreed by 11 votes to nil.

Age Concern, Oxfordshire	Towards the cost of additional community developmen t in Abingdon and surrounding villages	Social Agenda, Access priority	£5,817	Councillor Pat Lonergan proposed and Councillor Jim Halliday seconded £4,000. By way of an amendment Councillor Tony de Vere proposed and Councillor Tim Smith seconded £5,817. On being put the amendment was carried by 11 votes to nil. On being put the Substantive Motion was carried by 11 votes to nil.
Abingdon on Thames Chamber of Commerce	Towards the cost of staging the Abingdon Extravanga nza evening	Economi c Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	£500 (subject to none of the grant being spent on fireworks)	Proposed by Councillor Mary de Vere, seconded by Councillor Tim Smith and agreed by 4 votes to nil with 2 abstentions with 5 of the voting Members not being present during consideration of the application.
The owner, 26 Pagisters Road, Abingdon	Maintenanc e of trees which are subjects of a Tree Preservatio n Order	Environ mental Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority	£100	Proposed by Councillor Julie Mayhew Archer, seconded by Pat Lonergan and agreed by 9 votes to 1 with 1 abstention. Councillor Beth Fleming had proposed and Councillor Richard Webber had seconded an amendment that no grant be offered but this was lost by 7 votes to 3 with 1 abstention.

- (d) that consideration of the following grant applications which have been awarded a grant by the Executive at its meeting held on 17 October 2008 and referred to this Committee for possible additional support be deferred (proposed by Councillor Richard Webber, seconded by Councillor Pat Lonergan and agreed nem com): -
  - (i) Oxfordshire Play Association, £5,673, towards core costs of providing support services to play settings in the Vale, Social Agenda, Access priority (£1,500 awarded);
  - (ii) South & Vale Carers Centre, £7,938, towards core costs of providing a support service to carers, Social Agenda, Access priority (£3,214 awarded)
  - (iii) Assisted Reading for Children in Oxfordshire, £3,000, to impart a love of reading to children in the Vale, Social Agenda, Access priority (£1,000 awarded)
  - (iv) Oxfordshire Playbus, £6,000, towards a replacement sensory vehicle for children with special needs, Social Agenda, Access priority (£2,000 awarded.

Exempt Information Under Section 100A(b) of the Local Government Act 1972

None.

The meeting rose at 9.45 pm